Committee for Social Development

Inquiry into allegations, arising from a BBC NI Spotlight
programme aired on 3 July 2013, of impropriety or
irreqularity relating to NIHE managed contracts and

consideration of any resulting actions — Phase 3
Volume 2

Together with the Minutes of Proceedings, Minutes of Evidence, Correspondence
and Written Submissions relating to the Report

Ordered by the Committee for Social Development to be printed 16 April 2015

This report is the property of the Committee for Social Development. Neither the report nor its
contents should be disclosed to any person unless such disclosure is authorised by the Committee.

THE REPORT REMAINS EMBARGOED
UNTIL COMMENCEMENT OF THE DEBATE IN PLENARY

Mandate 2011/16 Twelfth Report - NIA 222/11-16






Powers and Membership

© 0 ~NO O WN PR

N N
ahrwWN RO

Powers and Membership

The Committee for Social Development is a Statutory Departmental Committee established

in accordance with paragraphs 8 and 9 of the Belfast Agreement, section 29 of the
Northern Ireland Act 1998 and under Standing Order 48.

The Committee has power to:

consider and advise on Departmental budgets and annual plans in the context of the
overall budget allocation;

consider relevant secondary legislation and take the Committee stage of primary
legislation;

call for persons and papers;
initiate inquires and make reports; and

consider and advise on any matters brought to the Committee by the Minister for
Social Development.

The Committee has 11 members including a Chairperson and Deputy Chairperson and a
quorum of 5.
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With effect from 01 October 2013 Mr Stewart Dickson replaced Mrs Judith Cochrane
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Letter to Speaker 21.01.15

Northern lreland
Assembly

COMMITTEE FOR SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT

Room 284
Parfiament Buildings
BELFAST

BT4 3XX

Email: kevin.pelan@niassembly.gov.uk
Tel: 028 9052 1864

Fax: 028 9052 1667

21 January 2015

Our Ref: CSD/022/2013/3/AM

The Speaker

Mr Mitchel McLaughlin MLA
Room 38

Parliament Buildings
BELFAST

BT4 3XX

oear ILLLL .

The Committee for Social Development (the Committee) agreed at its meeting
on 15 January 2015, that, pursuant to Section 44(1 ) of the Northern ireland
Act 1998 (1998 Act) , and Standing Order 48(2) | should write to you
requesting that you issue a notice under Section 44 (7) of the 1998 Act to the
Minister for Social Development to provide a copy of a Report of a Fact-
Finding Exercise relevant to the Committee’s Inquiry.

Background

You will be aware of a BBC NI Spotlight programme, which aired on 3 July
2013, which made allegations of potential wrongful political interference in the
Northern lreland Housing Executive (NIHE), potential breaches of the
Ministerial Code of Conduct and potential misleading of the Assembly and the
Committee.
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At its meeting of 3 October 2013, the Commitiee agreed the Terms of
Reference for its Inquiry into Allegations arising from the BBC Spotlight
Programme aired on 3 July 2013. The Committee is currently considering
evidence in relation to Stand (i) of its Terms of Reference (phase 3 of the

Inquiry):

0] Decision making relating to the award, modification and
cancellation of NIHE maintenance contracts fo esfabiish
any impropriety or irregularity and, in particular, whether
the actions of Ministers were appropriate

The Spotlight Programme also made allegations regarding the former
Minster's Special Adviser, Mr Stephen Brimstone. it was alleged that he
called Clir Jennie Palmer and told her to vote against the NIHE board’s
decision o terminate the RedSky contract.

As a result of this allegation the Permanent Secretary for the Department for
Social Development (DSD) initiated a fact-finding exercise ta determine
whether there was a basis to take forward a formal investigation.

This was carried out by senior officials from the Department of Finance and
Personnel.

Timeline of correspondence on Fact-Finding exercise

In response to an enquiry by the Committee Chair, DSD wrote to the
Committee on 23 August 2013 (appendix 1) to confirm that the fact-finding
exercise had been initiated.

On 25 September 2013 (in response to the Committee's letter of 17
September 2013 at appendix 2), DSD confirmed that the fact-finding exercise
had commenced on 20 August 2013 and that it was now complete. DSD
advised that once it had fully considered the report, a decision would be made
on the appropriate next steps and the Committee would be updated at that
point (see appendix 3).

On 26 February 2014 the Committee requested an update from DSD in
relation to the outcome of the report (appendix 4). DSD responded on 11
April 2014 (appendix 5) stating that it was an internal departmental matter
relating to a member of staff and therefore it would not be appropriate to
provide a commentary at that time. However DSD went on to state that it was
its intention to inform the Committee of any outcome, following the conclusion
of the matter.
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On 4 September 2014, staff advised the committee that they had received
confirmation that Minister McCausland had received the fact-finding report.

The Committee wrote to Minister McCausland on 8 September (appendix 6)
seeking inter alia, an update regarding the outcome of the fact-finding
exercise.

On 18 September 2014 (appendix 7) Minister McCausland wrote {o the
Committee stating that, based on legal advice, it was clear that it was a matter
that he should deal with personally and he had concluded that no further
action needed to be taken. He stated that due to a long established principle
he could not release the report to the Committee. It should be noted that the
Committee had not requested a copy of the report at that point.

The Committee wrote to the Head of the Northern Ireland Civil Service (NICS)
on 28 September 2014 (appendix 8) in relation to procedures and
responsibilities as regards such fact-finding exercises into the conduct of
Special Advisers. In his letter of @ October (appendix 9) the Head of the NICS
confirmed the generic process in the initiation of the fact-finding exercise and
that the responsibility for the decision regarding any further action to be taken
sat with the Minister as the appointing authority.

Following legal advice provided to it on 6 November 2014 and a subsequent
vote on the issue, the Committee wrote to Minister Storey on 10 November
2014 (appendix 10), formally requesting a copy of the report and indicating
that should the report not be released, the Committee would be minded to
request the Speaker to issue a notice under section 44(7) of the 1998 Act to
obtain its release.

Minister Storey replied on 26 November 2014 (appendix 11) stating that the
report contained personal information, and asked the Committee to set out
how the disclosure of the information was necessary for the Committee's task
in relation to strand (i) of its terms of reference.

The Committee responded in some detail to this request on 2 December
(appendix 12).

On 11 December 2014 Minister Storey wrote (appendix 13) stating that, for
reasons outlined in his letter, he had been advised that the report does not
meet the ‘test of necessity’ applied in discovery in the courts and so the
Department would not be obliged to produce the document in proceedings in
a court in Northern Ireland.
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The Commitiee considered this letter at its meeting on 8 January 2015
(appendix 14) and agreed to take legal advice before moving forward.

Committee Decision

At its meeting of 15 January 2015 the Committee heard legal advice in
relation to the Minister's letter of 11 December 2014. Following discussion on
whether to seek to compel the release of the Fact-Finding Report a motion
was proposed:

That the Committee for Social Development asks the Speaker to issue a
section 44 notice compelling the Minister for Social Development to
release the DFP fact-finding report into the alleged actions of the
Minister’s Special Adviser.

This motion was carried by a vote of 8-3
Reasons for compelling release of report

The Commitiee is very clear that the terms of reference for the fact-finding
exercise and therefore the content of the report fall squarely within the terms
of reference of the Committee's Inquiry Allegations Arising from the BBC
Spotlight Programme aired on 3 July 2013, specifically strand (i)

Decision making relating to the award, modification and cancellation of
NIHE maintenance contracts to establish any impropriety or irregularity
and, in particular, whether the actions of Ministers were appropriate

The exercise in question was undertaken to establish facts about allegations
made on the BBC Spotlight Programme on the conduct of the former
Minister's Special Adviser. It is clear that the conduct of the Special Adviser
cannot easily be separated from the conduct of the Minister given the nature
of the relationship and the fact that the Special Adviser holds office at the
behest of the Minister.

The Committee therefore notes that there are clear implications that should
Mrs Palmer's account of a telephone call be substantiated then this could
indicate an attempt by Minister McCausland, via his Special Adviser, to
exercise influence over contractual matters which he had been advised by
senior DSD officials were the sole remit of the NIHE.

This would potentially call into question the Minister's action in relation to
decision-making regarding the ‘modification and cancellation of NIHE
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maintenance contracts' and whether the action of the Minister was
‘appropriate’.

The Committee also notes that the evidence at times has been confradictory
and sometimes unclear, particularly given the time that has elapsed since the
gvents in guestion. The Committee believes that the fact-finding exercise may
be able to provide clarification on a number of issues, particularly when it was
conducted at a time when recollections may have been clearer.

You should note that Clir Palmer voluntarily provided to the Committee her
statement which she made to the fact-finding team.

Given that the Committee believes that the report is potentially an important
piece of evidence and the Comimittee has taken every step possible to seek
voluntary release of the report, the Committee agreed that it would now seek
to compel the document under section 44 of the 1998 Act..

The Committee notes the role of the Speaker in issuing a notice in writing to a
natural or legal person under subsection 44(7) of the 1998 Act, and that such
a notice must specify “the documents, or fypes of documents which he is to
produce, the date by which he is to produce them, and the particular matters
to which they are to relate”.

On behalf of the Committee, | request that you issue a notice under
subsection 44(7) to the Minister for Social Development, Mr Mervyn Storey to
compel production of the report “DSD Special Adviser — Fact-Finding
Exercise”.

The Committee would ask that the report is delivered to the Committee for
Social Development Office, Room 114, Parliament Buildings, Belfast, BT4
3XX, within 7 working days of the date that the notice is issued.

Yours sincerely
A

-
3

KA

Mr Ales Maskey MLA

Chairperson, Committee for Social Development
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Appendix 1

Level 4, Lighthouse Building
1 Cromac Place

Gasworks Business Park
Ormeau Road

Belfast BT7 2JB

Tel: 028 90829 030
Email:Billy.Crawford@dsdni.gov.uk

Dr Kevin Pelan

Social Development Committee Clerk Northern Ireland Assembly

Room 412, Parliament Buildings

Ballymiscaw, Stormont

Belfast BT4 3XX 23 August 2013

Dear Kevin

DSD Special Adviser — Fact-Finding Exercise

Thank you for your note of August 20th conveying the Chair’s interest in the DSD fact-finding
exercise that has been reported in the media in recent days. Conscious that the Committee
has announced an inquiry into this and related matters with terms of reference yet to be
agreed, the intention was to brief the Committee at an early opportunity.

In common with other special advisers, Mr Brimstone is a temporary civil servant, appointed
under Article 3 of the Civil Service Commissioners (Northern Ireland) Order 1999. His terms
and conditions require performance with the high standards expected of senior civil servants
and also specify that any disciplinary matters which were to arise in relation to him should be
dealt with in accordance with the disciplinary procedures set out in the HR Handbook. He is
similarly bound by the NICS Code of Ethics.

Recent allegations about the Special Adviser’s reported conduct made during a BBC Spotlight
programme have led the Permanent Secretary to conclude the need for fact finding to be carried
out independent of the Department. When allegations of serious misconduct have been made
against an individual, when the individual denies the allegation and where there is a lack of hard
evidence to underpin allegations, it is standard practice for line management to carry out a fact
finding exercise to establish if there is any basis for proceeding with formal investigation.

In this instance the Permanent Secretary has agreed that the fact-finding interviews and
resultant decision on whether there is a basis for proceeding with a formal investigation
should be undertaken by someone outside the Department. To that end, Colin Lewis
(Department of Finance and Personnel) Head of Corporate HR in the NICS, will carry out the
fact-finding which will begin shortly. The outcome of this work will enable the Department
to review whether formal investigation needs to be initiated taking account of the terms of
reference for and progress on the Committee inquiry.

Terms of reference for the fact-finding exercise are appended for your information.

Yours Sincerely,

Billy Crawford

645



Inquiry into allegations, arising from a BBC NI Spotlight programme aired on 3 July 2013,
of impropriety or irregularity relating to NIHE managed contracts and consideration of any resulting actions — Phase 3

Appendix 1

Fact Finding Exercise — Terms of Reference

In a BBC Spotlight programme broadcast on 3 July 2013, Mrs Jenny Palmer, a DUP councillor
and NIHE board member, alleged that the DSD Special Adviser, Stephen Brimstone, pressured
her to change her vote at a board meeting called in July 2011 to discuss the Housing
Executive’s contract with the Red Sky maintenance company. Mrs Palmer alleged that Mr
Brimstone said that she should change her vote because the party came first and she should
do what she was told.

If Mr Brimstone acted as alleged by Mrs Palmer, his behaviour could be regarded as in
breach of certain parts of the Code of Conduct for Special Advisers and the general conduct
provisions set out in the HR Handbook.

The allegation made by Mrs Palmer in relation to Mr Brimstone’s conduct is therefore such as
to require consideration to be given as to whether a formal disciplinary investigation should
be carried out as a precursor to potential disciplinary proceedings. In cases where there is an
insufficient factual basis to warrant embarking on a formal investigation, it is normal practice
to carry out a factfinding exercise.

In the absence of any undisputed facts, the Department is not at this point in time in a
position to decide whether a formal disciplinary investigation is warranted.

The purpose of the fact finding exercise is therefore to establish whether there is any basis
for proceeding with a formal disciplinary investigation into the allegations made by Mrs
Palmer about Mr Brimstone.

To this end, the person carrying out the fact finding exercise should interview Mrs Palmer,
Jim Brown, Brian Rowntree and Mr Brimstone in order to indentify whether there might be
substance to the allegations from the Spotlight programme.

Following these interviews, the person carrying out the fact-finding exercise should produce
a report summarising the facts which have emerged from the interviews and making a
recommendation, in light of those facts, on whether or not a formal disciplinary investigation
would be warranted. This would involve additional interviews with any relevant person whose
name emerges in the course of the original fact finding to corroborate the facts or to provide
evidence against the allegations.
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Mr Billy Crawford

Department for Social Development
Lighthouse Building

1 Cromac Place

Gasworks Business Park

Ormeau Road

Belfast BT7 2JB

Dear Billy,

Appendix 2

Committee for Social Development

Room 412
Parliament Buildings
BELFAST BT4 3XX

Email: kevin.pelan@niassembly.gov.uk
Tel: 028 9052 1864
Fax: 028 9052 1667

Our Ref: CSD/017/2011/SK

17 September 2013

The department recently wrote to the committee advising it of the ‘fact-finding’ exercise to
establish whether there is any basis for proceeding with a formal disciplinary investigation
into the allegations made by Mrs Jenny Palmer about Mr Brimstone in the Spotlight

programme of 3 July 2013.

In advance of the committee initiating an inquiry into this and related allegations made in the
same programme | would ask you to confirm when this fact-finding exercise commenced and

when it is expected to conclude.
Yours sincerely

Kevin Pelan

Dr Kevin Pelan
Clerk, Committee for Social Development
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Appendix 3

Level 4

Lighthouse Building

1 Cromac Place
Gasworks Business Park
Ormeau Road

Belfast BT7 2JB

Tel: 028 90829 030
Email:Billy.Crawford@dsdni.gov.uk

Dr Kevin Pelan

Social Development Committee Clerk Northern Ireland Assembly

Room 412

Parliament Buildings

Ballymiscaw

Stormont

Belfast BT4 3XX Date: 25 September 2013

Dear Kevin

Thank you for your letter of 17 September 2013 about the fact finding exercise with regard to
the allegations made in a recent Spotlight programme about the DSD Special Adviser.

| can confirm that the exercise commenced on 20 August 2013 and is now complete.

The Department expects to receive the report of the exercise later this week. Once the
Department has had the opportunity to fully consider the report, a decision will be made on
the appropriate next steps and the Committee will be updated at that point.

Yours Sincerely,

Billy Crawford
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Appendix 4

Committee for Social Development

Room 412
Parliament Buildings
BELFAST BT4 3XX

Email: kevin.pelan@niassembly.gov.uk
Tel: 028 9052 1864
Fax: 028 9052 1667

Our Ref:CSD/ 022/2013/CMcC

Mr Billy Crawford

Department for Social Development

Lighthouse Building

1 Cromac Place

Gasworks Business Park

Ormeau Road

Belfast BT7 2JB 26 February 2014

Dear Billy,

Committee Inquiry — Request for Information under Phase 3

At the Committee meeting of 13 February 2014, the Committee considered the evidence
required under Phase 3 of the Inquiry into allegations arising from the Spotlight Programme.

The Committee agreed that it would write to the Department to request the following:

All correspondence between the former Minister for Social Development (Alex Attwood) and
NIHE Senior Officials regarding the NIHE contract management regime. This should include
but not be limited to correspondence relating to the Minister’s decision to carry out a review
into the NIHE in October 2010.

All correspondence from April 2011 to September 2011 relating to the decision to terminate
the Red Sky contract. This should include correspondence between the following parties:

®  the NIHE Board;
m the Ministers for Social Development (former and present);
m the Ministers’ Special Advisers

m  senior DSD and NIHE officials;

Copy of all correspondence between the Minister, Mr Brimstone and DSD and NIHE Senior
Housing Officials and Ms Jenny Palmer in respect of the decision by the NIHE Board to
terminate the Red Sky contact.

Copy of all documentation including briefing papers, correspondence, minutes, list of
attendees for the meetings of 28 April 2011. The meeting was to discuss Red Sky at the
office of the Chairman of the NIHE. Those present included: Peter Robinson MLA, Robin
Newton MLA and Sammy Douglas MLA, Stewart Cuddy Acting Chief Executive, Dr John
McPeake- Director of Housing & Regeneration and Acting Deputy Chief Executive

Copy of all documentation, including draft responses, accompanying submissions etc
regarding the letter from Robin Newton MLA to the Minister on 17 May 2011 and the
Minister’s response dated 31 May 2011.
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6.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Copy of all documentation including briefing papers, correspondence, minutes, list of
attendees for the meetings of 27 June 2011 - Meeting between representatives of Red Sky,
Minister McCausland, Peter Robinson, Sammy Douglas, Robin Newton, Jim Wilkinson and
Michael Sands.

Copy of all documentation including briefing papers, correspondence, minutes, list of
attendees for the meetings of 30 June 2011 - Meeting between Minister McCausland, Brian
Rowntree, Stewart Cuddy (Acting Deputy Chief Executive), Will Haire and Senior DSD Housing
Officials to discuss response maintenance contracts.

Copy of the ASM Horwath investigation commissioned by the NIHE in 2009.

Copy of all correspondence regarding the outcome of the ASM Horwath and VB Evans
investigation and the Repairs Inspection Unit Investigation. This should include
correspondence between the following parties:

m NIHE Officials
m DSD Officials
m The Ministers for Social Development (former and present)

® Red Sky Ltd.

All correspondence between Red Sky’s administrators and DSD and NIHE — particularly any
correspondence in relation to the purchase of contracts

Agenda and all papers produced for the papers and minutes of the NIHE Board meeting on
Tuesday 5 July 2011

All correspondence between Red Sky and the Minister and his Special Adviser from May
2011.

A copy of the dossier that the former Chairman of the Housing Executive, Mr Brian Rowntree,
sent to the PSNI and the Serious Fraud Office in November 2011.

Copies of the letters from the BBC to Minister McCausland and Mr Brimstone in November
2012 in connection with the Spotlight investigation. These letters were referred to in the
letters of 7 June 2013 from the BBC to Minister McCausland and Mr Brimstone.

The Terms of Reference for the Oversight Group chaired by the Permanent Secretary and the
minutes and reports produced by this Group including any correspondence to the Minister or
Senior DSD and NIHE officials regarding the management of maintenance contracts

Agenda and Minutes of the Performance Review meetings between Minister McCausland and
the Chair of the NIHE Board from May 2011 and 2012. Including all correspondence between
Minister McCausland and the NIHE as a result of these meetings.

All correspondence in respect of the outcome of the internal investigation in May 2013 which
found that contract management weaknesses led up £18m of overpayments. In particular
correspondence between:

® The NIHE and Senior DSD officials

m Senior NIHE officials and the NIHE Board

m Senior DSD and NIHE officials and the Minister
® The Minister and the NIHE Board
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18.

All correspondence in respect of the decision by the NIHE Board to commission Campbell
Tickell to review the organisation’s planned maintenance contracts in June 2013: In particular
correspondence between:

® The NIHE and Senior DSD officials

m  Senior NIHE officials and the NIHE Board

m Senior DSD and NIHE officials and the Minister
® The Minister and the NIHE Board

The Committee also requested an update on the Department’s Fact Finding exercise in
respect of the Minister’'s Special Adviser Stephen Brimstone.

To assist the Committee with its Inquiry, we would appreciate if this information is provided
to the Committee as soon as possible. To assist with the work of the Inquiry, we would
appreciate if the information is forwarded to the Committee as soon as it is available, rather
than information being delayed pending the collation of all documents.

Yours sincerely

Kevin Pelan

Dr Kevin Pelan
Clerk, Committee for Social Development
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Appendix 5

2nd Floor

Lighthouse Building

1 Cromac Place
Gasworks Business Park
Ormeau Road

BELFAST BT7 2JB

Telephone: 028 9082 9325
Facsimile: 028 9082 9324
EMail:susan.mccarty@dsdni.gov.uk

Dr Kevin Pelan

Committee Clerk

Committee for Social Development

Room 412

Parliament Buildings

Ballymiscaw

Belfast BT4 3XX 11 April 2014

Dear Kevin

Social Development Committee Inquiry — Phase 3

Thank you for your letter dated 26 February 2014 in which you requested information
from the Department and the Housing Executive in relation to Phase 3 of the Inquiry. |
forwarded part of the information you requested on 14 March and 3 April and now attach
further information.

Please find attached further documents and information in relation to the following:-

2. All correspondence from April 2011 to September 2011 relating to the decision to
terminate the Red Sky contract. This should include correspondence between the
following parties:

m the NIHE Board;
m the Ministers for Social Development (former and present);
m the Ministers’ Special Advisers

m senior DSD and NIHE officials;

In relation to your request for an update on the Department’s Fact Finding exercise in respect
of the Minister’s Special Adviser Stephen Brimstone, this is an internal departmental matter
relating to a member of staff. Therefore, it would not be appropriate at this time to provide

a commentary on the matter. However, at the conclusion of the matter it is the Minister’s
intention to inform the Committee of any outcome.

I hope this information is helpful. There are further documents in relation to numbers 1, 2, 9
and 15 which | will forward to you as soon as possible.

Yours sincerely
SU) e~ ANcC

Susan McCarty
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Appendix 6
®
Northern Ireland
Assembly
COMMITTEE FOR SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT

Room 284

Parliament Buildings

BELFAST

BT4 3XX

Email: kevin.pelan@niassembly.gov.uk
Tel: 028 9052 1864
Fax: 028 9052 1667

8 September 2014

Our Ref: CSD/011/2011/KP

Mr Nelson McCausland MLA
Minister for Social Development
Department for Social Development
Lighthouse Building

1 Cromac Place

Ormeau Road

Belfast BT7 2JB

Dear ,{/A._ ,

DSD Special Adviser — Fact-Finding Exercise

At its meeting of 4" September 2014, the Committee agreed to seek an
update on the status of the fact-finding exercise into the DSD Special Adviser,
Stephen Brimstone.

In a letter from the Department dated 23" August 2013 the Committee was
informed that a fact-finding exercise had been initiated into allegations made
against the Special Adviser in the Spotlight Programme aired on 3™ July, that
this fact-finding exercise would be conducted by the Head of Corporate HR of
the NICS, and that it would enable the Department to determine whether any
formal investigation should be initiated.

In a letter dated 25™ September 2013 the Department provided an update on
this matter, stating that the fact-finding exercise had been completed and that
the Department expected to receive the report on the exercise later that week.
It notes that, once the Department had had the opportunity to fully consider
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the report, a decision would be made on the appropriate next steps and that
the Committee would receive an update at this point.

The Committee was subsequently informed, in a letter dated 11" April 2014,
that the Department is not in a position to provide commentary on the
progress of the report into the fact-finding exercise, but that it is your intention
to inform the Committee of any outcome, following the conclusion of the
matter. Prior to the Committee meeting of 4™ September 2014, Committee
staff received confirmation that you have received the report on the fact-
finding exercise.

| would be grateful if you could advise the Committee of the following:

¢ On what date you received a copy of the report on the fact-finding
exercise into the DSD Special Adviser;

» Whether any decisions have been made on what the appropriate next
steps are, based on the findings in the report on the fact-finding
exercise;

¢ Whose responsibility it is to initiate any formal investigations arising
from the outcomes of the fact-finding exercise and whether any have
been initiated.

The progress of this fact-finding exercise may have implications for the
Committee’s Inquiry schedule and, as this matter has now been outstanding
for some time, the Committee would welcome an update.

[ would be grateful if you could provide an update, as outlined above, within
10 days of receipt of this letter.

Yours sincerely

A

Alex Maskey <
Chairperson, Committee for Social Development
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Appendix 7

Department for

=¥ Social
Development

www.dsdni.gov.uk

From: The Minister 5tk Floor
Lighthouse Building
1 Cromac Place
Gasworks Business Park
Ormeau Road
BELFAST
BT7 2JB

e'mail’ private office@dsdni.gov.uk
Tel: (028) 9082 9034

Mr Alex Maskey MLA
Chairperson
Committee for Social Development

Room 412
Parliament Buildings Your ref:
BELFAST
BT4 3XX Our ref: COR/530/2014
18 September 2014
Dear Alex

DSD Special Adviser — Fact-finding Exercise

Thank you for your letter of 8 September regarding the outcome of the report on this
exercise.

I have taken legal advice in relation to how the matter should be taken forward. On this
basis it is clear that it is a matter that | can and should deal with personally.

| have very carefully considered the report and every aspect of this matter and | have
concluded that no further action needs to be taken.

Accordingly | take this opportunity to inform the Committee of the outcome of my
consideration of the report.

| am aware that the Committee has asked the department for a copy of the report. In

accordance with long established principle it would not be appropriate to disclose this
report and so | cannot release it to the Committee.

¢ ™ INVESTORS
¥, v
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Together, tackling disadvantage, building communities
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Yours sincerely
Nelsen M Causland

NELSON MCCAUSLAND
Minister for Social Development

Together, tackling disadvantage, building communities
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Appendix 8

Assembly

COMMITTEE FOR SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT

Room 284

Parliament Buildings

BELFAST

BT4 3XX

Email: kevin.pelan@niassembly.gov.uk
Tel: 028 9052 1864

Fax: 028 9052 1667

28 September 2014

Our Ref: C8D/011/2011/5K

Dr Malcolm McKibbin
Head of Civil Service NI
Stormont Castle
Stormont Estate
Belfast

BT4 3TT

Dear [é/fe/'m -

You will be aware that the Committee for Social Development is conducting
an inquiry into allegations, made in a BBC Spotlight Programme, of
impropriety or irregularity relating to decision-making in respect of Northern
freland Housing Executive contracts.

In August 2013 the Committee was informed that a fact-finding exercise had
been initiated into allegations made against the Special Adviser in the
Spotlight Programme, that this fact-finding exercise would be conducted by
the Head of Corporate HR of the NICS, and that it would enable the
Department to determine whether any formal investigation should be initiated.

Subseguently in September 2013 the Department provided an update on this
matter, stating that the fact-finding exercise had been completed and that the
Department expected to receive the report on the exercise later that week. It

_noted that, once the Department had had the opportunity to fully consider the
report, a decision would be made on the appropriate next steps.
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In September 2014, the Minister informed the Committee that he had taken
legal advice in relation to how the matter should be taken forward. On the

basis of this advice he decided it was clear that it was a matter that he can

and should deal with personally.

Having considered the Minister's response, the Committee has questioned
who within government Departments has responsibility to initiate such a fact-
finding exercise in relation to Special Advisers, and who subsequently has
responsibility for the decision regarding any actions that should be taken
based on the outcomes of the exercise, including whether a formal
investigation should be initiated.

On behalf of the Committee, | would be grateful if you could clearly set out the
following:

¢ A description of the investigatory and decision-making process where
the behaviour of a Special Adviser could be regarded as having
breached the Code of Conduct for Special Advisers.

in particular | would ask you to clarify:

» whose responsibility it is, within government Departments, to initiate a
fact-finding exercise to establish if there is any basis for proceeding
with a formal disciplinary investigation;

o whose responsibility it is, within government Departments, to decide
whether a formal disciplinary investigation is required, based on the
outcome of that exercise;

» what flexibility does the decision-maker have in deciding whether a
format disciplinary investigation is required i.e. must they adhere to the
recommendation in the fact-finding exercise? If not, is it expected that
the decision-maker would give a reason for the alternative course of
action adopted?

The Committee also has a query regarding the status of Special Advisers as
temparary civil servants. Specifically, the Committee would like to know how,
if at all, this differs contractually from other temporary civil servants,
particularly in relation to disciplinary matters.

On another matter, the Committee wished to determine whether there is a
formal procedure to be followed when a Minister chooses to act against the
advice of a Permanent Secretary and subsequently instructs the Permanent
Secretary to follow a course of action with which the Permanent Secretary
does not agree.

1 would be grateful if you provide this information within 10 working days of
receipt of this letter.
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Yours sincerely

Al 36

Mr Alex Maskey MLA

Chairperson, Committee for Social Development
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Appendix 9
Dr Malcolm McKibbin BSc MBA DPhil CEng FICE T
Head of the Northern Ireland Civil Service First Mm_“’ter and
Head of the Office of the First Minister & Deputy First Minister Deputy First Minister
Stormont Castle we i ooy b
Stormont
Belfast
BT4 3TT
Tel: 028 90378133 Fax 028 90378205
E-mail: hocs@ofmdfmni.gov.uk
HCS-579-14
Alex Maskey MLA Our Ref: COR/58/14
Chairperson
Committee for Social Development
Northern Ireland Assembly 9 Octcber 2014
Dear Alex

Thank you for your letter of 29 September 2014, on which | have consulted officials within the
Department of Finance and Personnel, who have policy responsibility for the Code of Conduct for
Special Advisers. Within the context of the allegations made in a BBC Spotlight Programme against
a former Special Adviser in the Department for Social Development, you have asked some questions
concerning the fact-finding exercise carried out in this case and the process for disciplining Special
Advisers generally. | will respond to your queries in the order you made them.

Who within government departments has the responsibility to initiate such a fact-finding
exercise in relation to Special Advisers?
A fact-finding exercise was commissioned by the Permanent Secretary in DSD through the Department's

HR Director following separate discussions with the DSD Minister and me. Where such an exercise was
contemplated, this is the generic process which would be followed.

Who subsequently has responsibility for the decision regarding any actions that should be taken
based on the outcomes of the exercise, including whether a formal investigation should be
initiated?

This is the responsibility of the Minister, as the appointing authority.

Description of the investigatory process
| attach a link and would refer you to section 5 of this part of the NICS HR Handbook.

hitp://www.dfpni.gov.uk/6.03-discipline.pdf
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Who is responsible for initiating a fact-finding exercise; for deciding whether a formal
disciplinary investigation is required; and what flexibility does the decision-maker have in
deciding whether a formal disciplinary investigation is required?

All aspects of the disciplinary process are the responsibility of the Minister and any actions are at the
discretion of the Minister.

How, if at all, does the status of Special Advisers differ contractually from other temporary civil
servants, particularly in relation to disciplinary matters?

The contractual arrangements of Special Advisers differ from those of other temporary civil servants to
the extent set out in the model contract (which includes the Code of Conduct for Special Advisers)

appended to the Code Governing the Appointment of Special Advisers, available at:

http:/Awww. dfpni.gov. uk/spad-act-13-code-of-practice-governing-the-appointment-of-spads.pdf

The discipline policy as set out in the NICS HR Handbook applies to Special Advisers as it does to all
other civil servants, permanent and temporary. However uniike temporary and permanent civil
servants, the Minister is the appointing authority and the disciplinary authority. For temporary civil
servants, other than Special Advisers, and for permanent civil servants the ultimate authority would be
the Permanent Head of Department.

Is there a formal procedure to be followed when a Minister chooses to act against the advice of a
Permanent Secretary and subsequently instructs the Permanent Secretary to follow a course of
action with which the Permanent Secretary disagrees?

Managing Public Money NI sets out in paragraphs 3.4.1 to 3.4.6 a procedure which should be followed
where a Minister decides to continue with a course which the Permanent Secretary as accounting officer
has advised against. This process arises where the decision has financial implications.

I hope that you and the Committee find this information helpful.

N‘/‘ﬂ\' ;.JL wa]LM
I\« —
L

MALCOLM McKIBBIN
Head of the Northern Ireland Civil Service
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Appendix 10

Northern Ireland
Assembly

COMMITTEE FOR SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT

Room 284

Parliament Buildings

BELFAST

BT4 3XX

Email: kevin.pelan@niassembly.gov.uk
Tel: 028 9052 1864

Fax: 028 9052 1667

10 November 2014
Our Ref: CSD/011/2011/KP

Mr Mervyn Storey MLA

Minister for Social Development
Department for Social Development
Lighthouse Building

1 Cromac Place

Ormeau Road

Belfast BT7 2JB

Dear ‘
DSD Special Adviser — Fact-Finding Exercise

| refer to my letter of 8 September 2014 to the former Minister for Social
Development regarding the outcome of the report on the fact-finding exercise
into the DSD Special Adviser.

In his response of 18 September, the Minister stated that he was aware that
the committee asked the department for a copy of the report but, in
accordance with long established principle, he could not release it to the
committee. It should be noted that at that time the committee had not
requested a copy of the report.

At its meeting of 8 November 2014, the committee discussed the former
Minister's response and agreed that | should write to you formally requesting
you to release the report to the committee.

You will be aware of section 44 powers enabling statutory committees to
compel the release of papers. While the committee hopes that you will assent
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to its request and release the report | would advise you that, should the report
not be received within the next 7 days, the committee is minded to request the
Speaker to issue a section 44 notice in order to obtain its release.

I would be grateful, therefore, if you could provide a copy of the report to the
committee clerk within the next 7 days.

Yours sincerely

Alex Maskey
Chairperson, Committee for Social Development
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Thursday 6 November 2014
Room 29, Parliament Buildings

Present: Mr Mickey Brady MLA (Deputy Chairperson)
Mr Jim Allister MLA
Ms Paula Bradley MLA
Mr Gregory Campbell MLA
Mr Stewart Dickson MLA
Mr Fra McCann MLA
Mr Sammy Wilson MLA

In Attendance: Dr Kevin Pelan (Assembly Clerk)
Mrs Ashleigh Mitford (Assistant Assembly Clerk)
Mr Stewart Kennedy (Clerical Supervisor)
Mr Richard Reid (Clerical Officer)

Apologies: Mr Alex Maskey MLA (Chairperson)
Mr Michael Copeland MLA
Mr Sammy Douglas MLA

10.06am The meeting began in closed session.

The Committee discussed issues relating to the attendance of witnesses to give oral
evidence and the release of relevant documents to the Committee.

Agreed: The Committee agreed to write to Brian Rowntree regarding his decision not to
give oral evidence to the Committee.

The Committee discussed the former Minister’s decision not to release the fact-finding report
into the DSD Minister’s Special Adviser.

The motion was proposed: That the Committee write to the current Minister for Social
Development requesting that he provides the Committee with the fact-finding report into the
DSD Special Adviser.

Ayes 3;
Noes 4;
Abstentions; O

AYES:

Ms Paula Bradley MLA
Mr Gregory Campbell MLA
Mr Sammy Wilson MLA

NOES:

Mr Mickey Brady MLA (Deputy Chairperson)
Mr Jim Allister MLA

Mr Stewart Dickson MLA

Mr Fra McCann MLA

The motion fell.
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The motion was proposed: That the Committee write to the Minister for Social Development
requesting that he provides the Committee with the fact-finding report into the DSD Special
Adviser and advising the Minister that should he not release the report the Committee is
minded to obtain its release by issuing of a section 44 notice.

Ayes 4,
Noes 1;
Abstentions O.

AYES:

Mr Mickey Brady MLA (Deputy Chairperson)
Mr Jim Allister MLAMr Stewart Dickson MLA
Mr Fra McCann MLA

NOES:
Mr Sammy Wilson MLA
The motion was carried.

Agreed: The Committee agreed to write to the Minister for Social Development as per the
agreed motion.

[EXCERPT]
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Appendix 11

Department for

Social

( Development

From: The Minister 5th Floor
Lighthouse Building
1 Cromac Place
Gasworks Business Park
Ormeau Road
BELFAST
BT7 2JB

e-mail: private.office@dsdni.gov.uk

Tel: (028) 9082 9034
Mr Alex Maskey MLA
Chairperson
Committee for Social Development

Room 412
Parliament Buildings
BELFAST
BT4 3XX
Our Ref: COR/645/2014
Your Ref: CSD/011/2011/KP
26 November 2014
Dear Alex

DSD Special Adviser — Fact-Finding Exercise

Thank you for your letter of 10" November in which you seek production of the report of
the fact finding exercise into the DSD Special Adviser. | note that you have stated that
should the report not be received by 19 November, the Committee is minded to request
the Speaker issue a notice under section 44 of the Northern Ireland Act 1998.
Accordingly, the Committee is seeking the voluntary disclosure of the report and
compulsory power is not being exercised.

Although your letter does not explicitly state this, | assume that the report is sought in
connection with the Committee’s inquiry and in particular the first part of the terms of
reference:

decision making relating to the award, modification and cancellation of NIHE
maintenance contracts to establish any irregularity or impropriety and, in
particular, whether the actions of Ministers were appropriate.

You will appreciate that this report contains personal information and it is for me as
Minister to be satisfied that the disclosure of the information is necessary for the
exercise of functions conferred on the Assembly.

| should therefore be grateful if you would set out for me how this report is necessary for
the Committee’s task in relation to the first part of its terms of reference.

Together, tackling disadvantage, building communities { §
S
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I look forward to hearing from you by return.

Yours sincerely

ik

MERVYN STOREY MLA
Minister for Social Development

Together, tackling disadvantage, building communities { §
S
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Appendix 12

Northern Ireland
Assembly

COMMITTEE FOR SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT

Room 284

Parliament Buildings

BELFAST

BT4 3XX

Email: kevin.pelan@niassembly.gov.uk
Tel: 028 9052 1864

Fax: 028 9052 1667

2 December 2014
Our Ref: CSD/022/2013/3/KP

Mr Mervyn Storey MLA

Minister for Social Development
Department for Social Development
Lighthouse Building

1 Cromac Place

Ormeau Road

Belfast BT7 2JB

DSD Special Adviser — Fact-Finding Exercise

Thank you for your letter of 26 November 2014 in relation to a report on a
fact-finding exercise into the DSD Special Adviser.

| can confirm that the Committee is seeking the voluntary disclosure of the
report in relation to strand (i) of the Terms of Reference of the Committee’s

Inquiry:

decision making relating to the award, modification and cancellation of NIHE
maintenance contracts to establish any irregularity or impropriety and, in
particular, whether the actions of Ministers were appropriate.

In order that you can be satisfied that the disclosure of the report is necessary
for the exercise of functions conferred on the Assembly, you have asked me
to set out how this report is necessary for the Committee’s task in relation to
strand (i) of its terms of reference.
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You will be aware that the Committee’s inquiry was initiated as a result of
certain allegations made in the Spotlight programme which aired on 3 July
2013. In this programme it was alleged that Minister McCausland sought to
influence the NIHE board to extend the response maintenance contract of
Red Sky despite the board having taken the decision to terminate the contract
in April 2011.

It was also alleged that Minister McCausland’s Special Adviser exerted
pressure on ClIr Jenny Palmer, a member of the NIHE board, to try to
influence her vote at the meeting of 1 July 2011 to support the Minister’s
position. Evidence provided to the Committee by Mr Brimstone and Minister
McCausland makes it clear that they discussed phoning Mrs Palmer to ensure
that the Minister’'s views were provided to the NIHE board. It is therefore clear
that the subsequent phone call made by Mr Brimstone was made with the
implicit authority of the Minister.

The Committee has been provided with evidence which also makes clear that
Minister McCausland was advised by senior DSD officials that contractual
matters were the sole responsibility of the NIHE.

Therefore in reply to your query regarding how the report is necessary for the
Committee’s task in respect to the first part of its terms of reference, there are
clear implications that should Mrs Palmer’s account of the phonecall be
substantiated then this could indicate an attempt by Minister McCausland to
exercise influence over contractual matters which were outwith his remit. This
would potentially call into question the Minister's action in relation to decision
making relating to the ‘modification and cancellation of NIHE maintenance
contracts’ and whether the action of the Minister was ‘appropriate’.

Also evidence has at times been contradictory and sometimes unclear,
particularly given the time that has elapsed since the events in question.

The Committee believes that the fact-finding exercise may be able to provide
clarification on a number of points of evidence which the Committee has
heard, particularly as the fact-finding exercise was conducted over a year ago
when recollections may have been clearer. | have highlighted evidence in
Appendix 1 which the Committee has heard and which is relevant to this
issue, for your consideration.

I would remind you that the Committee is minded to request the Speaker to
issue a notice under section 44 of the Northern Ireland Act 1998 should the
fact-finding report not be voluntarily released. | would therefore ask you to
reply to this letter and the Committee’s request for the report by 11 December
2014.

Yours sincerely

. /7
i’:; ‘—’-_"\\——
Alex Maskeyy (j'
Chairperson, Committee for Social Development
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Appendix 1 — Relevant evidence

1. The Committee has received evidence which indicates that the phone call
was made with the implicit authority of the Minister.

1{i). Excerpt of Official Report (16 October 2014)

Stephen Brimstone: The Minister became aware that a party councillor was
one of the four political appointees on the Housing Executive Board, and that
was Councillor Palmer. it was discussed and the Minister felt that it would be
useful for me to contact Councillor Palmer fo ensure that she was fully aware
of his concemns, ahead of the special board meefing on 5 July, and that she
could ensure that his concerns were accurately reflected to the wider board at
the meeting on the following Tuesday. | undertook to contact Councillor
Palmer.

2. Key to informing the Committee’s consideration of the decision-making
relating to the modification and cancellation of the Red Sky contract is the
phone call made by Mr Brimstone to Mrs Palmer on 1 July 2011. However,
the Committee has received conflicting evidence regarding the nature and
content of that conversation.

2(i). Excerpt of Official Report (Evidence session 16 October 2014)

Mr Allister; Did he say whether he was ringing at anyone’s request or on
anyone's behalf?

Ms Palmer: Not really. In the conversation, after he had introduced himseff
and said that we should meet, that we had not had time to meet and that
maybe we should have done, he basically said, "But | need you to go info the
boardroom on Tuesday, go against the decision of the board to terminate the
contract and ask for an extension to the contract”. I asked him then, because |
was a bit shocked and taken aback by it, to repeat that, and he repeated it. |
was unaware of a board meeting being tabled for Tuesday, and | said, "The
board does not meet on a Tuesday”, and he said, "It will this Tuesday, and we
need you to do this". | said, "l am sorry, | don't think that | can do this".

2(ii). Excerpt of Official Report (Evidence session 16 October 2014)

Ms Palmer: His fone. His voice changed from the moment that I said that | did
not think that I could do what he had asked me to do. He became more
aggressive, and that is when he said, "Look, there is no point in you being on
the board of the Housing Executive unless you are prepared to do what we
need you to do. The party comes first in this instance, and you have fo go info
the boardroom on Tuesday, go against the decision of the board to terminate
Red Sky and ask for the extension™.
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2(iii). Excerpt of Official Report (Evidence session 16 October 2014)

Stephen Brimstone: Councillor Palmer, from my recollection, became very
defensive regarding the then chairman and strongly contested any suggestion
that he was not carrying out his duties appropriately. Counciflor Palmer went
on fo tell me about her role on the board's audit subcommitfee and said that,
in her view, all of the fault lay with Red Sky, the issues were solely limited to
Red Sky and the management of the Northern Ireland Housing Executive was
appropriately managing the response maintenance contract.

! responded by asking about L.eeway Maintain, another response
maintenance contractor in Belfast about which the Housing Executive internal
audit department was raising concerns regarding overcharging efc — the
same issues as with Red Sky. Councillor Paimer refused to accept that. |
again asked that she reffect the Minister's concerns fo the board. She said
she could not do that.

The Committee believes that the fact-finding exercise may be able to
clarify what Mr Brimstone and Mrs Palmer discussed during the phone
calt.

3. The phone call is also relevant given that Mrs Palmer has stated that at an
internal party meeting to discuss the phone call she recounted the
conversation to party colleagues (including Mr Brimstone) and Mr Brimstone,
at that time, agreed with her account. Mr Brimstone subsequently refuted this
in his evidence to the Committee.

3(i). Excerpt of Official Report (Evidence session 8 October 2014)

Mrs Palmer: He (Stephen Brimstone} said, "It's two years now since that
conversation, and | can't really recall that conversation”. | said, "Let me
remind you, Stephen”, and | gave it to him verbatim. Peter (Robinson) looked
at him and said fo him, "Stephen, what have you to say?". Well, he agreed
then that my account was practically right. He agreed that it was very much
what happened.

The fact-finding exercise may be able to provide insight into the
discussions surrounding the proposed apology from Mr Brimstone to
Mrs Paimer and whether he acknowledged in the report that Mrs
Palmer’s recollection was accurate.

4. Mrs Palmer has also given evidence to the Committee about her statement
to the fact-finding exercise, telling the committee that she had told the DFP
interviewers of a conversation she had with Mr Michael Sands regarding an
email sent by him, following a conversation with Mr Brimstone, to the chair of
the NIHE on the day of the board meeting to discuss the Red Sky termination.
She indicated to the Committee that she thought the fact-finding report was
‘contaminated’ .
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4(i). Excerpt of Official Report (Evidence session 9 October 2014)

Ms Palmer: Yes. / chair the Housing Council's housing and regeneration
committee. On the Thursday prior to signing off the document, the committee
met. At that meeting, DSD was in attendance, and at the lunch afterwards a
DSD official approached me and asked me whether he could ask me a
personal question. | said, "Yes, fire away". He said, "Jenny, do you know
anything about an email that was sent to the chairman of the board of the
Housing Executive on the morning of the Tuesday that the Red Sky contract
was terminated by the board?". | said, "Yes, sure it was your office that sent it
on behalf of Mr Brimstone". He said, "You know, he is going mad in the
Department trying to find it". | asked, "Who's going mad?", and he said, "Mr
Brimstone's wanting to find out where that email is, and he wants to view it". |
said, "Well, it was a DSD email, so you should have it within your system".

I had never spoken to anyone about that email — ever — until that DFP report
and investigation. | assumed that Mr Brimstone had been interviewed by the
same two people, that they had used some of my evidence to tease out his
interview, had told him about that and that he had panicked and gone into the
Department to look for it and had caused a stir. So | knew then, and | told him
that the report had been contaminated and that | did not trust it to go
anywhere.

§. The email referred to in 4(i) was sent by Michael Sands to the Chair of the
NIHE board and includes the SpAd’s belief that the 6 month extension, to the
Red Sky contract, was too long and that it should be 4 months. Evidence
received by the Committee from Mr Sands indicates that he had a
conversation with Mr Brimstone about the content of the email and while Mr
Brimstone acknowledges that he did communicate with Mr Sands about this
email he is unable to recall his specific involvement.

5(i). Excerpt of Official Report (Evidence session 13 November 2014)

Mr Allister: Tell us what your involvement was in the genesis of that email.
Mr Brimstone: Just so that | am clear, | thought that | had already answered
that. | do not recall.

Mr Allister: /ndulge me by answering it again.

Mr Brimstone: / do not recall.

Mr Allister: You do not recall. Therefore, we have an email that, on the face
of it, appears to involve an instruction from you, and you cannot help the
Committee, because you cannot recall how it came about. Is that it, Mr
Brimstone?

Mr Brimstone: / am not sure how else | can answer that.

The Chairperson (Mr Maskey): Maybe | can come in. You are being asked
about an email that was sent at 7.40 am. Michael Sands said that he sent that
email at your behest.

Mr Brimstone: Yes.

The Chairperson (Mr Maskey): You were asked at what time you were in the
office, and you said that you could not recall. You were then asked whether
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you were in the office, and you said that you could not recall. Can you give us
any information about how you engaged with Michael Sands to elicit that
email?

Mr Brimstone: No, ! cannot.

The Committee believes the fact-finding report may shed some light on
the importance of this email, whether Mr Brimstone was aware of it at
the time or whether he was made aware of it by the DFP interviewers

during their evidence gathering; and indeed whether, and how, he had
been instrumental in ifs origin.
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Appendix 13

Department for

Social

Development
S dsang gov.ihk
From: The Minister 5th Floor

Lighthouse Building

1 Cromac Place

Gasworks Business Park

Ormeau Road

BELFAST

BT7 2JB

e'mail: private.office@dsdni.gov.uk

Tel: (028) 9082 9034
Mr Alex Maskey MLA
Chairperson
Committee for Social Development
Room 412
Parliament Buildings
BELFAST
BT4 3XX
Our Ref: COR/685/2014
Your Ref: CSD/022/2013/3/KP

11 December 2014
DSD SPECIAL ADVISER - FACT-FINDING EXERCISE
Thank you for your letter of 2™ December.

| note that the report is sought under Strand (i) of the Terms of Reference of the
Committee’s Inquiry.

You refer to evidence from the former Minister, Nelson McCausland and from
Stephen Brimstone which “makes it clear that they discussed phoning Mrs. Palmer to
ensure that the Minister's views were provided to the NIHE board.” You then state that
the subsequent phone call was made with the implicit authority of the Minister.
However neither the former Minister nor Mr. Brimstone gave evidence that
Mr. Brimstone was to tell her to “go against the decision of the board to terminate the
contract and ask for an extension to the contract’, which is Mrs. Palmer’s account of the
conversation.

Accordingly the Committee have no evidence that the Minister endorsed the action that
Mrs. Palmer says Mr. Brimstone took. If Mrs. Palmer's account of the conversation
were accepted, the Committee could not on this basis conclude that the Minister’s
actions were not appropriate. The inquiry is into the appropriateness of Minister's
actions and not into the appropriateness of the actions of a special adviser.

On this basis | have been advised that the report does not meet the test of necessity

applied in discovery in the courts and so the Department would not be obliged to
produce the document in proceedings in a court in Northern Ireland.

Together, tackling disadvantage, bullding communitles ( \}
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| should be grateful for your comments.

Yours sincerely

ik

MERVYN STOREY MLA
Minister for Social Development

Together, tackling disadvantage, bullding communities ( \g
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Mr Mervyn Storey MLA

Minister for Social Development
Department for Social Development
Lighthouse Building

1 Cromac Place

Ormeau Road

Belfast BT7 2JB

Dear

DSD Special Adviser — Fact-Finding Exercise

Appendix 14

Committee for Social Development

Room 284
Parliament Buildings
BELFAST BT4 3XX

Email: kevin.pelan@niassembly.gov.uk
Tel: 028 9052 1864
Fax: 028 9052 1667

Our Ref: CSD/022/2013/3/SK

15 December 2014

Thank you for your letter of 11 December 2014. The Committee will consider this at its next

meeting on 8 January 2015.

Yours sincerely

Alex Maskey
Chairperson, Committee for Social Development
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Letter from the Speaker 28.01.15

The Speaker
. Office of the Speaker
) Room 39, Parliament Buildings
Ballymiscaw, Stormont
Belfast BT4 3XX
Tel: +44 (0) 28 9052 1130
Fax: +44 (0) 28 9052 1959
N o rkhern Ill;'el an d email: s;:a:er@niassembly.gov.uk
ssembly
Mr Alex Maskey
Chairperson, Committee for Social Development
Room 412
Parliament Buildings
Stormont
BT4 3XX
28 January 2015
Dear Alex,

Notice to the Minister for Social Development requiring the production of documents
required by the Committee for Social Development

Further to your letter of 21 January 2015, | can confirm that earlier today | issued a notice to
the Minister for Social Development under subsection 44(7) of the Northern Ireland Act 1998,
requiring the production to the Committee for Social Development, on or before 4 February
2015, of a copy of the report “DSD Special Adviser- Fact Finding Exercise”.

Yours sincerely,

I’Hﬁ:ﬂ)"hﬁﬁ:ﬁ;

MITCHEL MCLAUGHLIN MLA

SP025_15
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Letters from Speaker and Minister — re Section 44
Notice 3.01.05 & 4.01.15

The Speaker

Office of the Speaker

Room 39. Parliament Buildings
Ballymiscaw, Stormont

Belfast BT4 3XX

Tel: +44 (0) 28 9052 1130

Fax: +44 (0) 28 9052 1959
NO rthern I rela nd email: speaker@niassembly.gov.uk

Assembly

Mr Alex Maskey

Chairperson, Committee for Social Development
Room 412

Parliament Buildings

Stormont

BT4 3XX

4 February 2015
Dear Alex,
Notice to the Minister for Social Development requiring the production of documents

required by the Committee for Social Development

As you know, pursuant to the Committee’s exercise of the power under section 44 of the
Northern Ireland Act 1998, and at its request, | issued to the Minister for Social Development
a notice in accordance with my duty under s44(7).

The Minister has written to me, but as this matter relates to the decision of the Committee to
exercise the power, | have invited him to continue to direct his representations to you.

As the Committee does not meet until 5 February, | was content to extend the date for
compliance to 1700 on 5§ February so as to allow the Committee to consider the Minister's
correspondence. | would be happy to respond to a request from the Committee for any further
extension but it is for the Committee to consider that.

| attach the Minister’s letter, and my reply.

Yours sincerely,

s ‘,:M!, " —f“—\_ !
MITCHEL MCLAUGHLIN MLA
§P025_15
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Department for
Social
Development

From® The Minister "8t Floor
Lighthouse Building
1 Cromac Place
Gasworks Business Park
Ormeau Road
BELFAST
BT7 2JB

e-mail: private office@dsdni.gov.uk
Tel: (028) 9082 9034
Mr Mitchel McLaughlin MLA
Office of the Speaker
Room 39 Our ref: COR/67/2015

Parliament Buildings
BELFAST

BT4 3XX 3 February 2015

Dear Speaker

Thank you for your letter of 28" January requiring production of the report of the fact
finding exercise to the Social Development Committee. As you will be aware my
Department has declined to produce the report to the Committee and has asked how
the report is necessary for it to carry out its inquiry under the terms of reference
agreed by the Committee.

In addition | have concerns as to whether, even if relevant, disclosure of the report

would be in the public interest having regard to the essential nature of the
disciplinary process and its confidentiality.

The process by which you issue a notice does not, so far as | am aware, permit
representations to be made before a notice is issued and no opportunity was given
to the Department to make such representations to you.

| am advised that the High Court has a similar process in relation to issuing witness
summonses. However, the High Court permits a witness in receipt of a summons to
produce documents to apply to have the summons set aside.

| write to enquire whether you are prepared to consider representations by the
Department with a view to this order being set aside. | note that the order requires
compliance by 4™ February and | should be grateful if you would extend the period
for compliance so that the issue | have raised can be addressed.

Yours sincerely

oy ¥y

MERVYN STOREY
Minister for Social Development

& ™, INVESTORS
% _# IN PEOPLE

Together, tackling disadvantage, building communities
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The Speaker
"l'. X Room as.ﬁﬁ;:et:te:u?:ﬁank:;
y Ballymiscaw, Stormont
Belfast BT4 3XX
~N Tel: +44 (0) 28 9052 1130
Northern Ireland sl oo gun
Assembly
Mr Mervyn Storey MLA
Minister for Social Development
Lighthouse Building
1 Cromac Place
Gasworks Business Park
Ormeau Road
Belfast
BT7 2JB
4 February 2015

For the Urgent Attention of the Minister for Social Development

RE: Notice under Section 44 of the Northern Ireland Act 1998

Dear Minister,
| refer to your letter of 3 February.

As explained in the notice of 28 January, the Social Development Committee exercised its
power under section 44 of the Northern Ireland Act 1998, and | therefore issued the notice in
accordance with my duty under section 44(7).

Since it is the Committee that has exercised the power, any representations that you wish to
make about the matter should therefore continue to be directed to the Committee.

As the Committee does not meet until the morning of 5 February, | am content to extend the
date for compliance to 17.00 on the 5 February to allow the Committee to consider your
correspondence and whether it wishes to request any further extension. | suggest that you
use the time available to you to make your representations to the Committee for consideration
at their meeting on 5 February.

Yours sincerely,

J ~

3 ol » ! -
P PR T G|
LAk .

MITCHEL MCLAUGHLIN MLA

SP037_15
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Letter from the Speaker to the Minister 05.02.14

The Speaker
. Office of the Speaker
' Room 39, Partiament Buildings
Ballymiscaw, Stormont
‘ Belfast BT4 3XX
\ Tel: +44 (0) 28 9052 1130
Fax: +44 (0) 28 9052 1859
Northern lt;IEIand email: s:)ea;er@niassembly‘gov.uk
Assembly
Mr Mervyn Storey MLA
Minister for Social Development
Lighthouse Building
1 Cromac Place
Gasworks Business Park
Ormeau Road
Belfast
BT7 2JB
5 February 2015

For the Urgent Attention of the Minister for Social Development

Notice under Section 44 of the Northern Ireland Act 1998

Dear Minister,

Further to my letter dated 4 February 2015 in relation to the above matter.

The Social Development Committee at its meeting this morning considered your request to
extend the deadline for receipt of the report “DSD Special Adviser — Fact-Finding Exercise”.
The report relates to the fact finding exercise conducted by officials from the Department of
Finance and Personne!l into the aileged actions of the Special Adviser, Mr Stephen
Brimstone. Following its consideration, the Committee agreed to an extension of the deadline.
In accordance with subsection 44(7) of the Northern Ireland Act 1998 | therefore give notice
that a copy of the report should be delivered to the Social Development Committee Office,
Room 114, Pariiament Buildings, Stormont, Belfast, BT4 3XX on or before 5pm on 12
February 2015.

Any further representations on this issue should be directed to the Committee.

A failure to comply with this notice may constitute a criminal offence.

Yours sincerely,

NSREN)

MITCHEL MCLAUGHLIN MLA

SP039_15
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Letter from the Chairperson to the Minister — 05.02.15

Northern Ireland
Assembly

COMMITTEE FOR SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT

Room 284

Parliament Buildings

BELFAST

BT4 3XX

Email: kevin.pelan@niassembly.gov.uk
Tel: 028 9052 1864

Fax: 028 9052 1667

5 February 2015
Our Ref: CSD/022/2013/3/AM

Mr Mervyn Storey MLA

Minister for Social Development
Department for Social Development
Lighthouse Building

1 Cromac Place

Ormeau Road

Belfast BT7 2JB

Dear /! &qf/\/laxvx

DSD Special Adviser — Fact-Finding Exercise

Thank you for your letter of 5 February 2015 in which you advise that you are
seeking a further extension for compliance with the notice issued to you by
the Speaker on 28 January 2015.

The Committee considered your correspondence at its meeting today and has
written to the Speaker and advised him that it is content with an extension for
the production of the report until 5pm on Thursday 12 February 2015.

The Committee is prepared to consider any written representation that you
would wish to make at its meeting on Thursday 12 February 2015 at 10 am.
The Committee requires your written representation to be delivered before
2pm on Wednesday 11 February 2015.

| would be grateful if you would indicate if you and/or your officials will attend
the Committee meeting on 12 February 2015 to make a presentation on this
issue.
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Yours sincerely

Chairperson, Committee for Social Development
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Letter from the Chairperson to the Speaker — 05.02.15

ﬁ
Northern Ireland
Assembly

COMMITTEE FOR SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT

Room 284

Parliament Buildings

BELFAST

BT4 3XX

Email: kevin.pelan@niassembly.gov.uk
Tel: 028 9052 1864

Fax: 028 9052 1667

5 February 2015

Our Ref: C8D/022/2013/3/AM

The Speaker

Mr Mitchel McLaughlin MLA
Room 38

Parliament Buildings
BELFAST

BT4 3XX

Dear }'éﬁ L*’( .

Notice to the Minister for Social Development requiring the production
of documents required by the Committee for Social Development

| refer to your correspondence of 4 February 2015 which the Committee
considered at its meeting today.

The Committee is aware that the Minister for Social Development will be in
breach of the notice issued by you on 28 January 2015, compelling a report
under Section 44 (7) of the 1998 Act, if he does not produce the required
report by 5 pm today.

The Committee for Social Development agreed at its meeting today, that |
should write to advise you that the Commitiee agreed that the deadline for
producing the report should be extended until 5pm on 12 February 2015.
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The Committee would ask that the report is delivered to the Committee for
Social Development Office, Room 114, Parliament Buildings, Belfast, BT4
3XX.

Yours sincerely

AL askey MLA
Chairperson, Committee for Social Development
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Letter from the Minister to the Chairperson —
11.02.15

Department for

Social

Development

www.dsdni.gov.uk

From: The Minister 6tk Floor

Lighthouse Building

1 Cromac Place

Gasworks Business Park

Ormeau Road

BELFAST

BT7 2JB

e-mail private office@dsdni.gov.uk

Tel: (028) 9082 9034

Mr Alex Maskey MLA
Chairperson
Committee for Social Development
Room 412
Parliament Buildings
BELFAST
BT4 3XX

Our Ref: COR/67/2015

Your Ref:

11 February 2015
Dear Alex

Thank you for your letter of 5 February. Please accept my apologies in the delay
replying. This was due to the Consideration Stage of the Welfare Reform Bill
progressing through the Assembly.

My position is that | am not obliged under section 44(a) of the Northern Ireland Act 1998
to produce the report. However, | am anxious to maintain good relationships with the
Committee and accordingly in a spirit of compromise, | am minded to release
statements made by the parties in the fact finding process to you but you will understand
1 am obliged to consult the individuals who made those statements before coming to a
final conclusion. | believe that this will fully meet the needs of the Committee as set out
in your letter of 2 December. | will be in a position to reply substantively in the very near
future.

Yours fincerely

MERVYN STOREY MLA
Minister for Socdial Development

Together, tackling disadvantage, building communities ( ‘?
S

INVESTOR IN PEOPLE
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Letter from the Chairperson to the Minister —
12.02.15

Northern Ireland
Assembly

COMMITTEE FOR SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT

Room 284

Parliament Buildings

BELFAST

BT4 3XX

Email: kevin.pelan@niassembly.gov.uk
Tel: 028 9052 1864

Fax: 028 9052 1667

12 February 2015
Our Ref: CSD/022/2013/3/AM

Mr Mervyn Storey MLA

Minister for Social Development
Department for Social Development
Lighthouse Building

1 Cromac Place

Ormeau Road

Belfast BT7 2JB

Dear ¢ ‘i/wm{)\

DSD Special Adviser — Fact-Finding Exercise

Thank you for your letter of 11 February 2015 in which you indicated that you
do not believe that you are obliged to release the fact finding report under
section 44 of the Northern Ireland Act and are minded to release statements
made by the parties interviewed in the course of the fact finding process.

The Committee considered your position carefully at its meeting today. it
agreed that the statements in isolation would not sufficiently meet its
requirements in relation to the Committee’s Inquiry. There are significant
contradictions in the evidence provided to the Committee on key allegations
made in the Spotlight Programme aired on 3 July 2013 and therefore the
findings of fact within the Report fall squarely within the terms of reference for
the Inquiry.

The Committee is very mindful of the time pressure you and your Department
have been under with the Consideration Stage of the Welfare Reform Bill. It
has therefore agreed to write to the Speaker to request that the deadline for

687




Inquiry into allegations, arising from a BBC NI Spotlight programme aired on 3 July 2013,
of impropriety or irregularity relating to NIHE managed contracts and consideration of any resulting actions — Phase 3

the release of the report be extended untii 5 PM on Wednesday 18 February
2015.

Further, the Committee agreed that, should the report not be provided, the

Clerk to the Committee should initiate the relevant section 44 enforcement
procedures.
7 <

Yours sincerely

Alex Maskey
Chairperson, Committee for Social Development
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Letter from the Chairperson to the Speaker —
12.02.15

Northern Ireland
Assembly

COMMITTEE FOR SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT

Room 284

Parliament Buildings

BELFAST

BT4 3XX

Email: kevin.pelan@niassembly.gov.uk
Tel: 028 9052 1864

Fax: 028 9052 1667

12 February 2015

Our Ref: C8D/022/2013/3/AM

The Speaker

Mr Mitchel McLaughlin MLA
Room 38

Parliament Buildings
BELFAST

BT4 3XX

Dear M&@M

Notice to the Minister for Social Development requiring the production
of documents required by the Committee for Social Development

As you are aware the Minister for Social Development will be in breach of the
notice issued by you on 28 January 2015, compelling a report under Section
44 (7) of the 1998 Act, if he does not produce the required report by 5 pm
today.

The Committee has considered further correspondence from the Minister at
its meeting today which | have enclosed for your information.

The Committee considered the Minister’s position carefully at its meeting
today and agreed that the statements in isolation would not sufficiently meet
its requirements in relation to its Inquiry. There are significant contradictions
in the evidence provided to the Committee on key allegations made in the
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Spotlight Programme aired on 3 July 2013 and therefore the findings of fact
within the Report falt squarely within the terms of reference for the Inquiry.

The Committee for Social Development agreed that | should write to advise
you that the Committee agreed that the deadline for producing the report
should be extended again, until 5pm on Wednesday 18 February 2015.

Further, the Commitiee agreed that, should the report not be provided, the
Clerk to the Committee should initiate the relevant section 44 enforcement
procedures.

The Committee would ask that the report is delivered to the Committee for
Social Development Office, Room 114, Parliament Buildings, Belfast, BT4
3XX.

&A

Yours sincerely

Mr Alex Maskey MLA
Chairperson, Committee for Social Development
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Letter from the Speaker to the Chairperson —
12.02.15

The Speaker

Office of the Speaker

Room 39, Parliament Buildings
Ballymiscaw, Stormont

Belfast BT4 3XX

Tel: +44 (0) 28 9052 1130

Fax: +44 (0) 28 9052 1959
N 0o rthe m l re | an d email: speaker@niassembly.gov.uk

Assembly

Mr Alex Maskey

Chairperson, Committee for Social Development
Room 412

Parliament Buildings

Stormont

BT4 3XX

12 February 2015
Dear Alex,
Notice to the Minister for Social Development requiring the production of documents

required by the Committee for Social Development

Further to your letter of 12 February 2015, | can confirm that | have issued a notice to the
Minister for Social Development under subsection 44(7) of the Northern Ireland Act 1998,
requiring the production to the Committee for Social Development, on or before 18 February
2015, of a copy of the report “DSD Special Adviser- Fact Finding Exercise”.

| attach a copy of the letter that | have issued today to the Minister.

Yours sincerely,
AT

Mo T

MITCHEL MCLAUGHLIN MLA

SP049_15
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Letter from the Speaker to the Minister — 12.02.15

The Speaker

Office of the Speaker

Room 39, Parliament Buildings
Ballymiscaw, Stormont

Belfast BT4 3XX

Tel: +44 (0) 28 9052 1130
Fax: +44 (0) 28'9052 1959
N o rth ern I re l an d email: speaker@niassembly.gov.uk

Assembly

Mr Mervyn Storey MLA
Minister for Social Development
Lighthouse Building
1 Cromac Place
Gasworks Business Park
Ormeau Road
Belfast
BT7 2JB
12 February 2015

For the Urgent Attention of the Minister for Social Development

Notice under Section 44 of the Northern Ireland Act 1998

Dear Minister,

Following today's meeting of the Social Development Committee, | have received
correspondence from the Chairman, on behalf of the Committee, requesting that | write to
you to advise that the Committee, following consideration of your letter dated 11 February
2015, has agreed that the deadline for producing the report “DSD Special Adviser — Fact-
Finding Exercise” should be extended again.

In accordance with subsection 44(7) of the Northern lreland Act 1998 | therefore give notice
that a copy of the report should be delivered to the Social Development Committee Office,
Room 114, Parliament Buildings, Stormont, Belfast, BT4 3XX on or before 5pm on 18
February 2015.

I have been further advised by the Chairperson that the Committee has agreed that, should

the report not be provided, the Clerk to the Committee should initiate the relevant section 44
enforcement procedures.

Yours sincerely,

Mok Ty

MITCHEL MCLAUGHLIN MLA

SP048_15
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Letter from the Minister to the Chairperson —
18.02.15

Department for
Social
Development

www.dsdni.gov.uk

From: The Minister 5tk Floor
Lighthouse Building
1 Cromac Place
Gasworks Business Park
Ormeau Road
BELFAST
BT7 2JB

e-mail: private.office@dsdni.gov.uk

Tel: (028) 9082 9034
Mr Alex Maskey
Chairperson
Committee for Social Development
Room 412
Parliament Buildings
BELFAST
BT4 3XX
18 February 2015

Dear Alex
DSD SPECIAL ADVISER - FACT FINDING EXERCISE

Thank you for your letter of 12" February. | am disappointed that the Committee is not
prepared to accept an honest attempt to find a suitable compromise which will fully meet
the Committee’s needs. It is difficult to understand how the Committee can decide that
the statements would not sufficiently meet the Inquiry’s requirements when it has not
seen them and | would respectfully urge the Committee to reconsider its decisions. In
any event | have had those interviewed in the fact finding process consulted and they
have not objected to the record of their interviews as annexed to the Report being
provided by to the Committee.

Accordingly the interview records from Mrs Palmer, Mr Brimstone and Mr Ewart are
attached. For the avoidance of any doubt these are the statements | referred to in my
letter of 11" February and they are the only interviews conducted in the course of the
process. Accordingly they are the factual element of the report as they provide the
accounts of events which the only witnesses interviewed gave. | do so to assist the
Committee and not as a result of any compuision. | am also prepared to release
sections of the report of a factual nature provided the Committee agrees to respect the
confidentiality of the report and not to refer to it in public or in its report without my
agreement. My view is that the rest of the report falls within the exception to the power
of the Committee to require production of a document set out in section 44 (9) of the
Northern Ireland Act 1998. My reasons for coming to this view are twofold: firstly, on the
basis of the information supplied to me to date by the Committee, | do not consider the
remainder of the report to be relevant to the terms of reference of the Committee and

¥ ™Y, INVESTORS
% & IN PEOPLE

Together, tackling disadvantage, building communities
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even if it were relevant, its production is not necessary for the Committee to complete its
task. Secondly, there is a strong public interest in maintaining the confidentiality of the
disciplinary process within the civil service and on this ground also | consider that the
remainder of the report falls within the exceptions set out in section 44 (9). I will
provide further representations on these points, and indeed wider legal issues, in the
event that the Committee does not accede to my request to reconsider its decision and
revoke the requirement to produce the report in its entirety.

Your letter refers to significant contradictions in the evidence provided to the Committee
on key allegations made in the Spotlight Programme aired on 3th July 2013. You do not
set out in your letter what those contradictions are nor how they relate to the terms of
reference of the Inquiry. | should be grateful if you would provide me with details.

You also state that if the report is not provided the Clerk should initiate the relevant
Section 44 enforcement procedures. | should be grateful if you would provide me with
details of those procedures.

| trust this issue which appears to me to be peripheral to the work of the Inquiry can be
amicably resolved.

Yours sincerely

MERVYN STOREY MLA
Minister for Social Development

Together, tackling disadvantage, building communities
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Letter to the Chairperson from the Minister —
19.02.15

Department for

Social

Development

www.dsdni.gov.uk

From: The Minister 5th Floor
Lighthouse Building
1 Cromac Place
Gasworks Business Park
Ormeau Road
BELFAST
BT7 2JB

e-mail: private.office@dsdni.gov.uk

Tel: (028) 9082 9034
Mr Alex Maskey MLA
Chairperson
Committee for Social Development

Room 412
Parliament Buildings
BELFAST
BT4 3XX
Our Ref:
Your Ref:
19 February 2015
Dear Alex

Further to my letter yesterday | note that the BBC reported today details of the report.
In my letter | asked that the Committee agree to respect its confidentiality and not to
refer to it in public without my agreement. There was no indication from you that this
approach was not acceptable. However it would appear that the confidentiality of the
report has not been respected and | assume that you will now conduct an investigation
to ensure that this information was not disclosed by the Committee and in due course
provide me with the results.

| have to say that | am extremely disappointed by this occurrence and look to you to
provide reassurance that the Committee has not breached confidentiality in this matter
and will not do so in the future.

Yours sincerely

i

MERVYN STOREY MLA
Minister for Social Development

Together, tackling disadvantage, building communities ( }
SR

INVESTOR IN PEOPLE
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Letter from the Chairperson to the Minister —
19.02.15

"

Northern Ireland
Assembly

COMMITTEE FOR SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT

Room 284

Parliament Buildings

BELFAST

BT4 3XX

Email: kevin.pelan@niassembly.gov.uk
Tel: 028 9052 1864

Fax: 028 9052 1667

19 February 2015
Our Ref: CSD/022/2013/3/AM

Mr Mervyn Storey MLA

Minister for Social Development
Department for Social Development
Lighthouse Building

1 Cromac Place

Ormeau Road

Belfast BT7 2JB

Dear .L('&Wl/\.jry\
DSD Special Adviser — Fact-Finding Exercise

Thank you for your letters of 18 and 19 February 2015 which the Committee
considered in closed session today.

The Committee shares your disappointment that details of the Special Adviser
Fact-Finding Report were referred to in the media today and agreed that the
report should be treated confidentially until discussions on the matter have
concluded.

The Committee thanks you for the information you have provided to date and
notes that the report has been partially redacted.

However the Committee also notes that you are
‘also prepared to release sections of the report of a factual nature provided

the Committee agrees to respect the confidentiality of the report and not to
refer to it in public or in its report without my agreement’
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The Committee agreed that it is willing to receive a written submission from
you in relation to these further sections of a factual nature for consideration at
its next meeting on 26 February 2015. | would be grateful therefore if this
submission was provided to the Committee Office by 4pm on Wednesday 25
February 2015.

In light of this the Committee also agreed that | write to the Speaker to advise
that the Committee is content that the deadline for the release of the full report
under section 44 (7) of the 1998 Act be extended until 5 pm on Thursday 26
February 2015.

Yours sincerely

Alex Maskey
Chairperson, Committee for Social Development
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Letter from the Chairperson to the Speaker —
19.02.15

Northern Ireland
Assembly

COMMITTEE FOR SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT

Room 284
Parliament Buildings
BELFAST

BT4 3XX

Email: kevin.pelan@niassembly.gov.uk
Tel: 028 9052 1864

Fax: 028 9052 1667

19 February 2015

Our Ref: CSD/022/2013/3/AM

The Speaker

Mr Mitchel McLaughlin MLA
Room 38

Parliament Buildings
BELFAST

BT4 3XX

Dear j{(zu

Notice to the Minister for Social Development requiring the production
of documents required by the Committee for Social Development

As you are aware the Minister for Social Development was required in a
notice issued by you on 28 January 2015, to produce a report under Section
44 (7) of the 1998 Act by 5 pm on 18 February 2015.

The Committee received a redacted copy of the report shortly after the
deadline which it considered in closed session in its meeting today.

The Committee also considered the Minister's accompanying correspondence
which stated that he is:

‘also prepared to release sections of the report of a factual nature
provided the Committee agrees to respect the confidentiality of the
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report and not to refer to it in public or in its report without my
agreement’

The Committee has written to the Minister to inform him that it is willing to
receive a written submission in relation to these further sections of a factual
nature for consideration at its next meeting on 26 February 2015.

The Committee for Social Development agreed that | should write to advise
you that the Committee agreed that the deadline for producing the full report
under Section 44 (7) should be extended again, until 5pm on Thursday 26
February 2015.

The Committee would ask that the report is delivered to the Committee for
Social Development Office, Room 114, Parliament Buildings, Belfast, BT4
3XX.

Yours sincerely

Alonc
r Alex p
Mr Al ¥ MLA

Chairperson, Committee for Social Development
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Letter from the Speaker to the Chairperson —
23.02.15

The Speaker
* Office of the Speaker
Room 39, Parliament Buildings
Ballymiscaw, Stormont
Belfast BT4 3XX
Tel: +44 (0) 28 9052 1130
Fax: +44 (0) 28 9052 1959
North ern l re Ia n d email: spea;er@niassembly.gov.uk
Assembly
Mr Alex Maskey
Chairperson, Committee for Social Development
Room 412
Parliament Buildings
Stormont
BT4 3XX
23 February 2015
Dear Alex,

Notice to the Minister for Social Development requiring the production of documents
required by the Committee for Social Development

Further to your letter of 19 February 2015, | can confirm that | have issued a notice to the
Minister for Social Development under subsection 44(7) of the Northern Ireland Act 1998,
requiring the production to the Committee for Social Development, on or before 26 February
2015, of a copy of the report “DSD Special Adviser- Fact Finding Exercise”.

| attach a copy of the letter that | have issued today to the Minister,

Yours sincerely,

M s M&LbeD,—\

MITCHEL MCLAUGHLIN MLA

SP0O57_15
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Letter from the Speaker to the Minister — 23.02.15

The Speaker

* Office of the Speaker
‘ Room 39, Parliament Buildings
Ballymiscaw, Stormont

Belfast BT4 3XX

Tel: +44 (0) 28 9052 1130
Fax: +44 (0) 28 9052 1959

BOV.UK
¥-B

Northern Ireland emait
Assembly

P!

Mr Mervyn Storey MLA
Minister for Social Development
Lighthouse Building
1 Cromac Place
Gasworks Business Park
Ormeau Road
Belfast
BT7 2JB
23 February 2015

For the Urgent Attention of the Minister for Social Development

Notice under Section 44 of the Northern Ireland Act 1998

Dear Minister,

Following the meeting of the Social Development Committee on 19 February 2015, | have
received correspondence from the Chairman, on behalf of the Committee, indicating that the
Committee have agreed that the deadline for producing the full report previously requested
under Section 44 (7) should be extended until 5pm on Thursday 26 February 2015.

In accordance with subsection 44(7) of the Northern Ireland Act 1998 | therefore give notice
that a copy of the full report should be delivered to the Social Development Committee Office,

Room 114, Parliament Buildings, Stormont, Belfast, BT4 3XX on or before 5pm on 26
February 2015.

Yours sincerely,

A e -

MITCHEL MCLAUGHLIN MLA

SP056_15
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Letter from Minister to Chairperson — 25.02.15

iﬁfo De-partn:\ent for
8¢ Social
 Development

From: The Minister 5th Floor
Lighthouse Building
1 Cromac Place
Gasworks Business Park
Ormeau Road
BELFAST
BT7 2JB

e-mail: private.office@dsdni.gov.uk

Tel: (028) 9082 9034

Mr Alex Maskey MLA
Chairperson
Committee for Social Development

Room 412

Parliament Buildings Our Ref: COR/67/2015
BELFAST

BT4 3XX 25 February 2015
Dear Alex

DSD SPECIAL ADVISER - FACT FINDING EXERCISE

Thank you for your letter of 19 February. To clarify, | have already placed at the
Committee’s disposal all the evidence that | consider to be of a factual nature. There is
nothing further to be added and | apologise if you have gained the impression that more
material was to follow. The material which was referenced in my letter of 18 February
was that which was submitted on that date.

Yours sincerely

MERVYN STOREY
Minister for Social Development

&Y, INVESTORS
%, & IN PEOPLE

Together, tackling disadvantage, buiidlng commutitties

702



DSD Special Advisor — factfinding exercise documentation

Letter from Chairperson to Speaker — 26.02.15

Committee For Social Development
Room 284

Parliament Buildings

Belfast

BT4 3XX

Email: kevin.pelan@niassembly.gov.uk
Tel: 028 9052 1864
Fax: 028 9052 1667

26 February 2015
Our Ref: CSD/022/2013/3/AM

The Speaker

Mr Mitchel McLaughlin MLA
Room 38

Parliament Buildings
Belfast

BT4 3XX

Dear

Notice to the Minister for Social Development requiring the production of documents required
by the Committee for Social Development

As you are aware the Minister for Social Development was required in a notice issued by you
on 28 January 2015, to produce a report under Section 44 (7) of the 1998 Act by 5 pm on
26 February 2015.

The Committee has considered further correspondence from the Minister today in which the
Minister indicated that it is not his intention to release any further material in relation to the
Fact Finding Report.

The Committee agreed to approach the Minister with a view to entering into arbitration on the
issue.

In order to facilitate these discussions the Committee for Social Development agreed that |
should write to advise you that the Committee agreed that the deadline for producing the full
report under Section 44 (7) should be extended again, until 5pm on Thursday 5 March 2015.

The Committee would ask that the report is delivered to the Committee for Social
Development Office, Room 114, Parliament Buildings, Belfast, BT4 3XX.

Yours sincerely

Mr Alex Maskey MLA
Chairperson, Committee for Social Development
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Inquiry into allegations, arising from a BBC NI Spotlight programme aired on 3 July 2013,
of impropriety or irregularity relating to NIHE managed contracts and consideration of any resulting actions — Phase 3

Letter to Minister from Chairperson — 26.02.15

Committee for Social Development
Room 284

Parliament Buildings

Belfast

BT4 3XX

Email: kevin.pelan@niassembly.gov.uk
Tel: 028 9052 1864
Fax: 028 9052 1667

26 February 2015
Our Ref: CSD/022/2013/3/AM

Mr Mervyn Storey MLA

Minister for Social Development
Department for Social Development
Lighthouse Building

1 Cromac Place

Ormeau Road

Belfast BT7 2JB

Dear

DSD Special Adviser — Fact-Finding Exercise

Thank you for your letter of 25 February 2015 which the Committee considered today in
closed session.

The Committee notes that it is not your intention to share further material in relation to the
Report and agreed that | seek to meet with you to discuss a proposed way forward.

The Committee proposes to invite you to agree to a mechanism of arbitration of inviting the
Lord Chief Justice to appoint a High Court Judge to examine the report in the context of the
Terms of Reference for the Committee’s Inquiry to determine if further information should be
disclosed.

In order to facilitate these discussions the Committee agreed to write to the Speaker to
request that the notice issued under section 44 (7) of the 1998 Act be extended until 5 pm
on Thursday 5 March 2015.

Yours sincerely

Alex Maskey
Chairperson, Committee for Social Development
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Letter from Minister to Chairperson —04.03.15

Department for

g,,g Social
’eR: Development

From: The Minister 5tk Floor
Lighthouse Building
1 Cromac Place
Gasworks Business Park

Ormeau Road
Alex Maskey MLA BELFAST
Chairperson BT72JB
Committee for Social Development e'mail: private.office@dsdni.gov.uk
Room 284 Tel: (028) 9082 9034
Parliament Buildings
Belfast Your Ref: CSD/022/2013/3/AM
BT4 3XX Our Ref: COR/1068/2015
Dear Alex

4 March 2015
DSD SPECIAL ADVISER - FACT FINDING EXERCISE

Thank you for your letter of 26 February.

You have indicated that you wish to meet to discuss a proposed way forward and you have
invited me to agree a mechanism of arbitration of inviting the Lord Chief Justice to appoint a
High Court Judge to examine the report in the context of the Terms of Reference for the
Committee’s Inquiry to determine if further information should be disclosed.

| am, of course, wiling to meet. Unfortunately owing to personal circumstances the
Department'’s legal advisor is not available this week, | do not envisage our meeting taking
place any earlier than next week. My Private Office will make the necessary arrangements.

In advance, | must restate that | have already provided the Committee with all material that |
consider to be of a factual nature. | have attempted to maintain a fair balance between
protecting the interests of those involved in the process and assisting the Committee. The
Committee now has the unedited accounts of all the witnesses interviewed in the process
and in addition considerable material from the report including the recommendation that a
formal disciplinary investigation be held.

| took this action to avoid unnecessary controversy between the Department and the
Committee and if anything, the balance has fallen more in favour of the Committee than
those involved in the process.

| regret that | cannot accede to the proposal in your letter.

Yours sincerely

MERVYN STOREY MLA

Minjstrrfpy.Social Development
Y% IN PEOPLE

Together, tackling disadvantage, bulldh_ig commnn
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Inquiry into allegations, arising from a BBC NI Spotlight programme aired on 3 July 2013,
of impropriety or irregularity relating to NIHE managed contracts and consideration of any resulting actions — Phase 3

Letter from Chairperson to Minister — 06.03.15

Committee for Social Development

Room 284
Parliament Buildings
BELFAST BT4 3XX

Email: kevin.pelan@niassembly.gov.uk
Tel: 028 9052 1864
Fax: 028 9052 1667

Our Ref: CSD/022/2013/3/SK

Mr Mervyn Storey MLA

Minister for Social Development

Department for Social Development

Lighthouse Building

1 Cromac Place

Ormeau Road

Belfast BT7 2JB 6 March 2015

Dear Mervyn,

DSD Special Adviser Fact-Finding Exercise — Mechanism for Arbitration

Thank you for your letter of 4 March 2015 in which you indicated that while you were willing
to meet with me you were unable to accede to the proposal for arbitration as outlined in my
letter of 26 February.

In light of your clarification on this matter and on the basis that the meeting was to discuss
whether you would agree to the mechanism outlined, | have decided that such a meeting
would have little or no merit.

The Committee discussed this issue at its meeting of 5 March and agreed with my view.

Despite this difficult matter | would hope that we can continue to build a solid working
relationship to address the wide range of policy issues under the remit of the Department for
Social Development.
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